COMMISSION BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I Name

The name of this agency shall be the Washington State Charter School Commission (WSCSC), henceforth referred to as "Commission."

ARTICLE II Purpose

The Commission is an independent state agency that exists to authorize high quality public charter schools throughout Washington with an emphasis on schools designed to expand opportunities for at-risk students. The Commission ensures that the highest standards of accountability and oversight apply to these charter schools as provided in RCW 28A.710.070.

The Commission is one of two types of entities permitted to authorize public charter schools in Washington State. The total number of charter schools is only 40 for Washington State.

In furtherance of its responsibilities as a charter school authorizer under 28A.710 RCW, the Commission provides leadership and oversight that is consistent with national principles and standards of charter school authorizers and the provisions of Washington's charter school law.

ARTICLE III Membership and Responsibilities

Section 3.1 Commission composition. The Commission shall consist of nine members, no more than five of whom shall be members of the same political party. Three members shall be appointed by the governor; three members shall be appointed by the president of the senate; and three members shall be appointed by the speaker of the House of Representatives. The appointing authorities shall assure diversity among commission members, including representation from various geographic areas of the state and shall assure that at least one member is a parent of a Washington public school student.

Section 3.1b Term of Commissioners. Members shall be appointed to four year, staggered terms , with initial appointments from each of the appointing authorities consisting of one member appointed to a one year-year term, one member appointed to a two-year term, and one member appointed to a three-year term all of whom thereafter may be re-appointed to a four year term. No member may serve more than two consecutive terms.

Section 3.2 Reimbursement. Commissioners shall not be compensated for their service but may be reimbursed for travel expenses in the same manner as provided for in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Section 3.3 Meeting attendance and preparation. Members are expected to consistently attend and prepare for Commission and committee meetings, of which they are members, in order to be effective and active participants. Members are further expected to stay current in their knowledge and understanding of the Commission's projects and policymaking.

Section 3.4 External communication. Members of the Commission should support Commission decisions and policies when providing information to the public. This does not preclude Commission members from expressing their personal views, as long as they are communicated as such. The executive director or a Commission designee will be the spokesperson for the Commission in regards to media matters.

Section 3.5 Commission responsibilities. The Commission may meet in order to review any concerns presented to the Chair or Executive Committee about a Commission member's inability to perform as a member or for neglect of duty.

ARTICLE IV Officers and Terms

Section 4.1 Designation. The officers of the Commission shall be the chair, vice chair, and one member-at-large.

Section 4.2 Term of officers. The term of chair and vice chair and member-at-large shall be for one (1) year beginning May 1 and expiring on April 30. A vacancy in the office of chair or vice chair or member-at-large shall be filled by the Commission at the next regular or special meeting of the Commission to serve out the remainder of the term. The member elected to fill the vacant officer position shall begin service on the executive committee at the end of the meeting at which she or he was elected and complete the term of office associated with the position.

Section 4.3 Officer elections.

The chair, vice chair, and member-at-large shall be elected annually by the Commission at a regular or special meeting of the Commission. The election of the president and vice president may occur as a slate, with the vice president agreeing to stand as a candidate for president when the president's term expires. A Commissioner may serve a maximums of four (4) consecutive one-year terms in the same officer position.

ARTICLE V Duties of Officers and Commission Members

Section 5.1 Chair. The Chair shall call meetings of the Commission and shall preside at all meetings of the full Commission. The Chair shall delegate assignments and duties to other Commission members, manage all matters of the Commission, and perform such other duties as are incident to the office or are required by the Commission or by law.

Section 5.2 Vice Chair. In the absence or unavailability of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform all of the duties of the Chair, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chair. The Vice Chair shall assist the Chair as the Chair deems necessary and shall have such powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Chair or the Commission.

Section 5.3 Member-at-large. The member at-large shall carry out duties as requested by the Chair and sit on the executive committee.

Section 5.4 Commission Members. Members shall fulfill duties and responsibilities as provided by law and delegated by the Chair and shall comply with the Code of Conduct attached and with Conflicts of Interest provisions provided by law.

Section 5.5 Committee Chairs. Committee Chairs shall report activities,

recommendations or decisions of their respective committees to the full Commission and shall inform the Chair when items need to be placed on the agenda.

ARTICLE VI Committees

Section 6.1 Standing Committees. The Commission shall have four Standing Committees:

- (1) Executive Committee
- (2) Finance
- (3) Charter School Authorization
- (4) Charter School Performance.

Section 6.2 Executive Committee.

- a) The executive committee shall consist of the chair, vice chair, and one member- atlarge.
- b) The executive committee shall be responsible for the management of affairs that are delegated to it as a result of Commission direction, consensus or motion, including transacting necessary business in the intervals between Commission meetings.
- c) The Commission chair shall serve as the chair of the executive committee.
- d) The executive committee shall meet at regularly scheduled intervals.
- e) The executive committee shall assure that the Commission annually conducts a Commission review and evaluation.

Section 6.3 Finance Committee.

- a) The finance committee shall consist of at least three Commissioners.
- b) The finance committee shall be responsible for:
 - Working with the Executive Director and appropriate staff to review and recommend to the entire Commission the biennium budget, annual budget and reviewing year-to-date actual and projected expenses versus budget.
 - Reviewing charter school quarterly and yearly financial statements and audit reports.
- c) Charter schools with financial data indicating that their financial viability is in jeopardy, as indicate through the Financial Performance Framework Measures and Metrics, are required to meet with the Finance Committee to discuss the school's plans regarding improving its financial viability.
- d) The finance committee shall provide recommendations to the full Commission regarding charter school and Commission financial oversight actions.
- e) The finance committee shall meet as needed.

Section 6.4 Charter School Authorization Committee.

- a) The charter school authorization committee shall consist of at least three Commissioners.
- b) The charter school authorization committee shall be responsible for working the Executive Director and appropriate staff to review the annual charter school

solicitation calendar and documents and recommend to the entire Commission the changes to the calendar and documents.

c) The charter school authorization committee shall meet as needed.

Section 6.5 Charter School Performance Committee.

- d) The charter school performance committee shall consist of at least three Commissioners.
- e) The charter school performance committee shall be responsible for reviewing data from charter schools pertaining to the performance framework and annual school reports.
- f) The charter school performance committee shall provide the entire Commission its recommendations concerning corrective action, revocation and closure of Commission authorized charter schools.
- g) The charter school performance committee shall meet as needed.

Section 6.6 Scope, Authority and Mission. The scope of authority and mission of each of the Commission's Standing Committees shall be memorialized in a committee charter. Each charter shall be recommended for approval to the Commission by the Chair of the respective committee.

Section 6.7 Standing Committee Members and Officers. Each Standing Committee shall have a Committee Chair and a Committee Vice Chair. The Commission Chair shall nominate a slate of Chair and Vice Chair candidates for approval by the Commission. The Commission shall vote on the appointment of Standing Committee members. All members not appointed to a Standing Committee shall be an ad hoc, ex-officio member of that Standing Committee.

Section 6.8 Voting. Standing Committees can make a recommendation to the Commission upon the concurrence of a simple majority of the Standing Committee.

Section 6.9 Advisors/Consultants to Committees. Each committee may consult with or be advised by non-Commission members, as determined appropriate by the Committee Chair.

Section 6.10 Ad Hoc Committees. The Commission Chair may, as circumstances warrant, authorize the creation of an ad hoc committee for a discrete and specific purpose of interest to the Commission and shall appoint all members and officers of such ad hoc committee(s). The Commission shall approve the charge of any ad hoc committee. Such committee may be created for a definite time period or until its specific function has been completed, but shall not exist longer than one (1) year from the date of authorization unless specifically authorized by its charge.

Section 6.11 Investigative Committees. The Commission, as provided by law, may designate two or more members, but less than the number of members that would constitute a quorum of the Commission, to investigate matters concerning Commission business. The members designated by the Commission are required to report their resulting findings and recommendations to the entire Commission.

ARTICLE VII Meetings

Section 7.1 General Business Meetings. Meet monthly per pre-approved schedule by the Commissioners. This same body will set new schedule in September. The new schedule

will be submitted to the Office of Code Reviser in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act.

Section 7.2 Special Meetings. The Commission Chair may call a special meeting of the Commission at any time, subject to statutory notice requirements.

Section 7.3 Committee Meetings. All committees shall meet at the discretion of the Committee Chair. The Committee Chair, with the approval of the Commission Chair, may change or cancel any committee meeting date, time, or location, subject to statutory notice requirements.

Section 7.4 Meeting Agenda. The General Business Meeting agenda shall be promulgated by the Executive Director, with input from the Committee Chairs and members.

Section 7.5 Hearings. Hearings to receive information and opinions, other than those subject to the provisions of Chapter 34.05 RCW relating to adoption of rules and regulations or as otherwise provided by law, shall be scheduled when necessary on the agenda prior to final consideration for action by the Commission.

Section 7.6 Conference Call Meetings. Members of the Commission, or any standing committee of the Commission, may participate in a meeting of the Commission or standing committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by which means all persons participating in the meeting can simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

ARTICLE VIII

Public Testimony and Submission of Data, Views, or Arguments

Section8.1 Submission of Data, Views, or Arguments. Any interested person may submit data, views, or arguments in writing to the Commission on any agenda item. Said written submittals shall be considered by members before taking action on any agenda item, subject to reasonable time for review.

Section 8.2 Public Comment. All interested persons shall be provided an opportunity to present public comment on any agenda item to the extent that time allows.

- 1) An individual or representative wishing to comment should register prior to the meeting. Comment must be related to an item that is on the agenda and such person shall be required to identify the agenda item to be addressed by the comment.
- 2) Each individual or representative of an organization is allotted two (2) minutes, or an amount of time otherwise designated by the Chair, to provide comment to the Commission. Written comments are strongly encouraged.

Section 8.3 Communication from the Public. Any member of the public or any organization may submit written communication to the Commission on any complaints, requests for public records, or other formal requests for action involving the public charter school system. The communication shall be filed with the Commission and all members of the Commission shall be advised of the communication.

ARTICLE IX Executive Director

Section 9.1 Hire. The Commission may hire an executive director.

Section 9.2 Duties. The executive director shall perform such duties as may be determined by the board and shall serve as secretary and non-voting member of the commission.

The executive director shall house records of the commission's proceedings in the commissioner's office and the make the records available upon request.

The executive director, subject to the input and advice from the Commission, shall supervise and have general charge of all operating functions and activities of the Commission and shall be charged with carrying out the policies, programs, orders, and resolutions of the Commission.

The executive director may employ, discharge and supervise, and determine the compensation of, employees of the Commission.

The executive director shall perform such other duties and shall have such other authority and powers as the Commission may from time to time prescribe, shall keep the Commission, officers, and committees of the Commission fully informed as to the business and affairs of the Commission and shall consult freely with them concerning its business and affairs.

Section 9.3 Commission Duties. The commission shall create or modify a job description for the executive director as needed.

Section 9.4 Annual Evaluation. The commission shall establish or modify the evaluation procedure of the executive director as needed. This evaluation should be conducted by the commission no earlier than one year after the job description or evaluation tool is established or modified. Subsequent to the evaluation, the chair, or chair's designee, will communicate the results to the executive director.

Section 9.5 Compensation and termination of the executive director. The rate of compensation or termination of the executive director shall be subject to six votes— if the number of Commissioners is increased, then the number needed to terminate will also need to be increased.

ARTICLE X Amendment to By-laws

Section 10.1 Notice Regarding Proposed Amendments. These bylaws can be amended at any General Business or Special Meeting provided that previous written notice was given to all members, including the specific language for the proposed amendment, and the matter was properly placed on the Commission's agenda.

Section 10.2 Approval of Amendments. Any amendment to the Commission's bylaws requires the concurrence of at least five members.

ARTICLE XI LEGAL COUNSEL

Section 11.1 Advice. The Commission Chair, Executive Director, or their designee(s), may seek advice from the Attorney General's Office. When the Commission Chair, Executive Director, or their designee(s), receives broadly applicable advice that will assist the Commissioners in the performance of their duties, that advice shall be shared with all of the Commissioners.

Section 11.2 Written Opinion. The Commission Chair or Executive Director, with support from a quorum of the Commission, may submit a written request for a formal AGO Opinion to the Attorney General's Office.

ARTICLE XII PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Section 12.1 The rules contained in *Robert's Rules of Order*. The newly revised Robert's Rules of Order shall govern public meetings where they are not in conflict with the law, these bylaws, or other rules of the Commission. In making a ruling or interpretation of the rules, the order of determination shall be 1) the law, 2) these bylaws, 3) Commission policy, and 4) *Robert's Rules of Order*, newly revised.